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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Adam Van Alen House, near Kinderhook, New York, is a one-and-a-half storey brick
farmhouse built in two distinct parts. The larger southern section was probably
built in 1737, while the northern wing was added sometime about 1750. The plan of
the house is typical of a northern Hudson Valley style which prevailed until the
1750's, wherein rooms were aligned side by side, with outside entrances to each.
Usually this would be no more than two or three rooms beside each other, and at the
Van Alen House, it was at first two (1727) and then three (c.1750).

The steeply gabled building has its ridge line punctuated by three chimneys, each
of which was originally an exterior end chimney, although the northern chimney of
the 1737 building now finds itself at the center of the composition. That original
building could hardly have been more simple, with two rooms on the ground floor, a
kitchen and a living hall, and one great sleeping chamber above. A floored attic
was squeezed above this into the gable, and a cellar was dug beneath each of the two
ground floor rooms.

The heavy timbered ceilings, the plastered walls, and the sparse cold light within,
except when all the windows and doors are open, created, then as now, an aura of
colonial country life at its most plain and sparsely decorated stage. The severity
of the interior was relieved by the tiled fireplaces where one could find colored
scenes of biblical stories, myths and allegories. The Dutch were also wont to
inject a little life into their interiors through brightly colored drapery and
sometimes a warmly-colored brick floor in the kitchen. None of these survive today
at the Van Alen House. The only real decoration on the exterior lay in the tie-
irons, customarily used by the Dutch to secure the outer walls to the inner beams,
although the mouse-toothing and the diapering of the brick are to some extent,
visual elements in their own right.

Although none of the originals survive, all evidence points to the use of free-hung
fireplaces, without jambs, throughout the house, This feature is typical of the
Dutch style, and is best seen in the Jean Hasbrouck House, at New Paltz, where
apparently, the only unreconstructed free-hung fireplace, with its hood and shelf
intact, still remains. This type of work has now been reconstructed at The Van
Alen House.

About 1750, a wing, consisting of a hallway and one room on each floor, plus
cellar, was added to the north side of the original building.

The roof of the house has been extensively reworked, removing nineteenth century
dormers. It too conforms to the style already mentioned, being steeply

pitched, with straight-edged ends and elbows at the lower ends, rather than the
perhaps more picturesque step-gables so common in New Amsterdam and, of course,

in contemporary Holland. One shed dormer remains in the roof on the west side

of the house. )\, ,} gl />
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Van Alen House, near Kinderhook, New York, is a nationally significant example of
an architectural type of Dutch colonial building which prevailed in the northern
counties of the Hudson Valley. As such, it should be contrasted with the Dutch
houses of southern New York and northern New Jersey which are another quite

different type. The affinity of the Van Alen House lies with structures such as

the Bronck House in Greene County, the Yates House, Schenectady County, and
especially, the Hendrick Bries House (1723) at East Greenbush, New York.

Characteristic features of this Upper Hudson River Dutch colonial style include the
straight-line gable (as opposed to the stepped), steep roof with end chimneys, a plan
of rooms aligned two or three in a row, and fine cross-~bond brickwork with a sharp
"mouse-tooth" finish along the gable ends. Typically, the masonry was secured to the
interior wooden frame by beam anchors of wrought iron, usually shaped into decorative
features of the house.

All of these features may be seen at The Van Alen House in very fine condition, one
of the few remaining examples of the style not badly dilapidated or "improved" by
subsequent alterations.
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Description: The Van Alen House

The walls of The Van Alen House are laid in a Dutch cross-bond, giving a
diapered appearance, with the commonly-featured mouse-toothing used here.

This device, which the English refer to as "tumbling-in," is a method of
arranging brick near the gable, at right angles to the gable, thereby giving a
saw tooth line against the regular horizontal courses. Although an interesting
visual element, the mouse~tooth finish derives from the attempt to make the
exposed copings more weatherproof than the use of only horizontal courses would
have made them. Some repointing and raking of the joints has taken place as

well as some rebuilding of the fieldstone foundation during recent restoration
work.

Condition

The Van Alen House was acquired by the Columbia County Historical Society in
1961, and following a careful assessment of the situation by several
architectural historians, archeologists, and historians, restoration work was
carried on over a period of years. The house was a pastiche of eighteenth and
nineteenth century features when work began, and still contains a mixture of
0old and new work. The restoration's guiding principle has been to adhere

to the style of work known to be prevalent in this area during the early to
mid-eighteenth century. At times original work was not reconstructed when early
features of the house survived. A number of the partitions for example are
not original, but are authentic eighteenth century survivals, and, as such,
have remained in place.

A staircase from the now-demolished Bries House was used in the ground floor
hall, since it is possibly of a type that was used at the Van Alen House in the
eighteenth century but later replaced.

Space does not permit, nor does it suit our purpose here, to specify the history
of all of the various parts of the house. Suffice it to say that a careful
restoration has been carried out after painstaking architectural, archeological,
and historical research, and that the details of each and every conclusion and
action are fully described in the Historic Structures Report which happily, is
now part of the National Historic Landmark file. The Van Alen House is more
today than in the recent past, an outstanding example of a style of Dutch
architecture which prevailed in the northern counties of New York (Albany,
Schenectady, Columbia, and Rensselaer) until about the 1750's. The Van Alen
House is well maintained by the Columbia County Historical Society, and is
regularly open to the public during the Summer months.
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Geographical Data (Verbal Boundary Description): The Van Alen House

The land on which this house stands was purchased by the Van Alen family, and
probably by Johannes Van Alen, father of Adam Van Alen, from its Indian owner,
Wattawit. Genealogical and land records concerning this property, from the
settlement of Kinderhook in the seventeenth century to the present day, are
quite complete and are detailed in the Blackburn-Piewonka Structures Report
included in the National Historic Landmarks file. The parcel of land acquired
by the Columbia County Historical Society in 1961 is doubtless the last
remaining piece of the original holding, and, as such, naturally constitutes
the boundary of the National Historic Landmark.

Another structure has recently been moved onto this site, a one-and-a-half-
storey frame building south and east of the house (see photo), supposedly
associated with Washington Irving, the writer. This building does not
contribute to the national significance of the NHL.

It has also been suggested that the Van Alen House was the basis of Irving's
"Van Tassel House,'" and that one of the Van Alen daughters was the inspiration
for Irving's character, "Katrina Van Tassel." Within two miles, lies the Van
Ness House (which we call "Lindenwald" since the occupancy of President

Martin Van Buren) where it is known that Washington Irving visited.

The accompanying deed map of the Columbia County Historical Society, titled
"Property of William T. Van Alen," prepared by New York State licensed
surveyors Rockefeller and Nucci of Claverack, New York in 1963, shows the
boundary of the National Historic Landmark in red pencil. Adjoining state
highway Route 9H, the landmark is entirely surrounded by light woodland, with
a picturesque fire pond east of the house.



